

Date: 29th April 2021

Reference: 33/2021

COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENT

PUBLICATION OF CONSOLIDATED AUDITED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following is a company announcement issued by JD Capital pic (the "Company"), having company registration number C 82098, issued in terms of the Prospects Rules, the market regulated as a multi-lateral trading facility operated by the Malta Stock Exchange ("Prospects MTF").

QUOTE

The Board of Directors of the Company announces that it met on 29th April 2021 and considered and approved the Company's Annual Report and Consolidated Audited Financial Statements for the financial period ended 31 December 2020. A copy of the signed Annual Report and Consolidated Audited Financial Statements is being attached to this announcement and are available for viewing on the Company's website:

https://www.jsdimech.com/investor-relations/

UNQUOTE

By order of the board

Dr. Jesmond Manicaro Company Secretary

Company registration no.: C 82098

JD CAPITAL PLC

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2020

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

CONTENTS	
	Page (s)
General information	2
Directors' report	3-6
Statement of compliance with the principles of good corporate governance	7 - 10
Independent auditors' report	11 - 17
Statements of comprehensive income	18
Statements of financial position	19
Statements of changes in equity	20
Statements of cash flows	21
Notes to the financial statements	22 - 46

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

GENERAL INFORMATION

Registration

JD Capital PLC is registered in Malta as a public limited liability company under the Companies Act (Cap. 386). The Company's registration number is C 82098.

Directors

Josef Dirnech Stanley Portelli Gaetano Vella Stephen Muscet

Company secretary

Jesmond Manicaro

Registered office

HHF 303 Industrial Estate Hal Far Birzebbugia BBG 3000 Malta

Bankers

Bank of Vallette p.kc. 58, Zachary Street Valletta VLT 1130 Malta

Izola Bank p.l.c. 53/58, East Street Valletta VLT 1251 Malte

Auditors

RSM Malta Mdina Road Zebbug ZBG 9015 Malta

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors submit their report and the audited financial statements of JD Capital PLC ("the Company") and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, "the Group") for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal activity

The Company's principal activity is to act as a holding company and to provide financing to its subsidiaries.

The Group is engaged in the business of providing aluminium, steel, wrought iron, large scale glass formats, and stainless-steel works, as well as the construction of steel structures. The Group also holds an investment property.

Business review

During the year under review, the Group made a profit before tax of €821,152 (2019: €866,811). For the same period, the Company made a profit before tax of €820,320 (2019: €7,515).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's total assets amounted to €33,259,796 (2019: €30,909,648) and net assets amounted to €8,570,597 (2019: €8,688,445).

As at 31 December 2020, the Company's total assets amounted to €12,641,293 (2019; €12,634,035) and net assets amounted to €7,565,710 (2019; €7,565,7150).

2020 has brought about significant and unprecedented challenges due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic. The initial four months of the pandemic, starting March 2020, were difficult as the Group was tooking at potential postponements of existing confirmed works in progress by customers as well as a 70% reduction in request for quotations of new Jobs, when compared to the previous year. During the third quarter, both works and request for quotations picked up to normal levels.

Throughout the financial year 2020, the management team focused on managing the impact and hazards of the pandemic. The Group took all necessary mitigating actions to ensure business continuity while also giving priority to the health and safety of the employees and customers, in line with directives issued by the national health authorities. The Group was mainly affected logistically due to managing a workforce with increasing unproductive days as a result of sicknesses and quarantines arising from the pandemic.

Even with these significant challenges, the Group reached two important milestones: (1) revenues in the region of €15.1 million, and (2) total assets stood at just over €36 million.

Despite the Increase in revenue by €3.8 million, and an increase in operating profit of €56,330, the Group registered decrease in profit before tax of €45,659 and a net operating cash outflow of €1 million. During the year under review, the group obtained government backed financing of €2.7 million through Malta Development Rank schemes, in order to ease its cashflow difficulties arising from the pandemic.

The Group has a clear financial framework and remains highly disciplined and focused on cash-flow and continues to increase working capital to ensure that the Group can continue important investments in order to remain competitive and relevant in the short to medium term thus securing the Group's future.

Management undertook a review of all cost drivers, taking corrective measures where appropriate. The finance team exerted extra effort on debtor management and meeting payment commitments. The operational team reviewed material demands to lessen stock levels and holding periods, as well as focusing on improving efficiencies on production, assembly and installation in order to reduce overtime hours.

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

DIRECTORS' REPORT - continued

Business review - continued

The Group has a resilient business that has weathered several economic downtums over the years.

While the challenges of the pandemic are likely to remain for some time to come, the board of directors is confident that the Group's disciplined and focused approach, together with remaining sensitiveness to industry trends and being responsive to investment opportunities, will ensure that the Group will remain at the forefront of the construction industry.

Results and dividends

The results for the period are set out in the statements of comprehensive income on page 18. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company paid dividends amounting to €527,365 or €2.15 per Ordinary share. The directors do not recommend the payment of any further dividend.

Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to credit, figuldity, and interest rate risks. These are further analysed in Note 31 in the financial statements.

Events after the end of the reporting period

After the end of the reporting period, the shareholders resolved to increase the Company's authorised share capital from €245,100 divided into two 245,000 Ordinary shares of €1.00 each and 100 Ordinary A shares of €1.00, to €7,548,700 divided into 7,543,621 Ordinary shares having a nominal value of €1.00 each and 3,079 Ordinary A shares of €1.00 each. The additional share capital is intended to be used to settle and capitalise the outstanding €7,301,600 subordinated loan of the Company through allotment of the additional authorised shares.

In the first quarter of 2020, the World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 as a pendemic and its impacts are ongoing. The Directors will continue to monitor and assess the situation on an on-going basis given that it is rapidly developing and is dependent on measures imposed by the Maltese Government and other countries, such as quarantine, travel restrictions and any economic stimulus that may be provided.

Going concern

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by €619,386. The Directors, at the time of approving the financial statements, have determined that there is reasonable expectation that the Group and the Company have adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the Directors have adopted the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

As required by Listing Rule 5.62, upon due consideration of the Company's profitability and statement of financial position, the Directors confirm the Company's ability to continue operating as a going concern for the foreseeable future.

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

DIRECTORS' REPORT - continued

Future developments

The Directors do not foresee any changes in the operating activities for the forthcoming year.

Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the directors were as listed in page 2.

In accordance with the Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association, the present directors remain in office, but shall retire from office at least once every three years. However, they shall be elgible for re-election.

Statement of directors' responsibilities

The Companies Act (Cap. 386) requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and of the Group as at period end and of their profit or loss for the period their ended.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

- adopt the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company and the Group will continue in the business
- select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- account for income and charges relating to the accounting period on the accruals basis;
- value separately the components of asset and liability items;
- · report comparative figures corresponding to those of the preceding accounting period; and
- prepare the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as defined in the Companies Act (Cap. 386) and in accordance with the provision of the same Act.

The directors are also responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and of the Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act (Cap. 386) enacted in Malta. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Auditors

RSM Malta, Certified Public Accountants. have expressed their willingness to continue in office and a resolution for their reappointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

DIRECTORS' REPORT - continued

Statement by directors on the financial statements and other information included in the report

The directors declare that to the best of their knowledge:

- the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position and financial performance of the Group and of the Company and have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and with the Companies Act (Cap 386); and
- this report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and positions of the Group and of the Company, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

Stephen Muscat

Director

The directors' report was approved by the Board of Directors and was signed on its bahalf by:

Josef Dimech Director

29 April 2021

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE PRINCIPLES OF GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

JD Capital PLC ("the Company") is committed to observing the principles of transparent, responsible corporate governance. The Board considers compliance with corporate governance principles to constitute an important means of maintaining the confidence of present and future bondholders, creditors, employees, business partners and the public. Pursuant to the Malta Financial Services Authority Listing Rules 5.94 and 5.97, the Company is hereby presenting a statement of compliance with the Code of Principles of Good Corporate Governance ("the Principles" or "the Code") for the year ended 31 December 2020, which details the extent to which the Principles have been adopted, as well as the effective measures taken by the Company to ensure compliance with these Principles. Other than as stated in Part Two below, the Company has fully implemented the Principles set out in the Code.

PART I - Compliance with the Code

Principle 1: The Board

The composition of the Board of Directors ensures that the Company is led by individuals who have the necessary skills and diversity of knowledge. The Board considers strategic issues, key projects and regularly monitors performance against delivery of the key targets of the group's business plan.

Principle 2: Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company has no employees. Mr Josef Dimech, an Executive Director of the Company, is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company's main subsidiary.

Principle 3: Composition of the Board

The Board of the Company who served during the year until 31 December 2020 was as follows:

Directors

Mr. Josef Dimech Dr. Stanley Portelli Mr. Gaetano Vella Mr. Stephen Muscat

Executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

Company secretary

Dr. Jesmond Manicaro

The Board considers that the non-executive directors are independent of management and free from any business or other relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement. The members of the Board have the balance of knowledge and experience as well as a strong non-executive presence to allow continued scrutiny of performance, strategy and governance.

For the purpose of Listing Rules 5.118 and 5.119, the non-executive directors are deemed independent. Each Director is mindful of maintaining independence, professionalism and integrity in carrying out his duties and responsibilities, whilst providing judgement as a Director of the Company.

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE PRINCIPLES OF GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE - continued

PART I - Compliance with the Code - continued

Principle 3: Composition of the Board - continued

The Board considers that none of the independent Directors of the Company:

- · is or has been employed in any capacity by the Company;
- · has or has had, over the past three years, a significant business relationship with the Company;
- has received or receives significant additional remuneration from the Company in addition to their director's fee:
- · has close family ties with any of the Company's executive directors or senior employees; and
- has been within the last three years an engagement partner or a member of the audit team or past external auditor of the Company.

Each of the independent Directors hereby declares that he undertakes to:

- · maintain in all circumstances his independence of analysis, decision and action;
- not seek or accept any unreasonable advantages that could be considered as compromising his independence; and
- clearly express his opposition in the event that he finds that a decision of the Board may harm the Company.

Principle 4: The Responsibilities of the Board

The Board has responsibility for overseeing the strategic planning process and reviewing and monitoring management's execution of the corporate and group business plan. The Board delegates certain powers, authorities and discretions to the audit committee. The role and competence of such committee is further described in Principle 8 hereunder.

Principle 5: Board Meetings

The Board meets at least six times a year unless further meetings are required in accordance with the needs of the Company. The Board has a schedule of matters reserved for it to discuss.

Each Director is expected to attend all meetings of the Board and Board committees of which the Director is a member. The Board recognises that occasional meetings may need to be scheduled on short notice when the participation of a Director is not possible and that conflicts may arise from time to time that will prevent a Director from attending or participating in a regularly scheduled meeting. However, the Board expects that each Director will make every possible effort to keep such absences to a minimum.

The Board has met eight times during the year. All Directors were present on all these meetings.

Principle 6: Information and Professional Development

The Company firmly believes in the professional development of all the members of the Board. The CEO and Senior management of the subsidiary are invited to attend Board meetings from time to time when appropriate.

Principle 7: Evaluation of the Board's Performance

The Board and each of its committees perform an annual self-evaluation of their performance through a series of questionnaires, the results of which are analysed accordingly.

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE PRINCIPLES OF GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE - continued

PART I - Compliance with the Code - continued

Principle 8: Committees

The Board delegates certain powers, authorities and discretions to the audit committee.

Audit Committee

The audit committee's primary role is to support the main Board in terms of quality control of the Company's financial reports, its internal controls and in managing the Board's relationships with the external auditors.

The audit committee comprises of the following independent, non-executive Directors:

Stephen Muscat Stanley Porteili Gaetano Vella

Chairman Member

Member

In compliance with the Listing Rule 5.118A, Mr Stephen Muscat is the Independent, non-executive Director who is competent in accounting and/or auditing matters in view of his considerable experience as a warranted Certified Public Accountant.

The audit committee met three times during the year. All members were present on all these meetings.

Principles 9 and 18: Relations with Bondholders and with the Market and Institutional Shareholders

The Company is committed to having an open and communicative relationship with its bondholders. The Soard believes that bondholders should have an opportunity to send communications to the Board. Any communication from a bondholder to the Board generally or a particular Director should be in writing, signed, contain the number of bonds held in the sender's name and should be delivered to the attention of the company secretary at the registered office of the Company.

The Company issues Company Announcements to keep the market informed of the Group developments.

Principle 11: Conflicts of Interest

The Directors should always act in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders and investors. The procedures internally followed by the Board reflect how sensitive such situations, if and when they arise, are considered by the Company. In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, any actual, potential or perceived conflict of interest must be Immediately declared by a Director to the other members of the Board, who then (also possibly through a referral to the audit committee) decide on whether such a conflict exists. In the event that the Board perceives such interest to be conflicting with the Director's duties, the conflicted Director is required to leave the meeting and both the discussion on the matter and the vote, if any, on the matter concerned are conducted in the absence of the conflicted Director.

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE PRINCIPLES OF GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE - continued

PART I - Compliance with the Code - continued

Principle 12: Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company remains committed to being a responsible company and making a positive contribution to society and the environment. This helps the Group develop strong relationships with its stakeholders, and create long-term value for society and its business. The Group is committed to play a leading and effective role in Meiter's sustainable development whilst tangibly proving Itself to be a responsible and caring entity of the community in which it operates. The Group continues to support a number of different local initiatives almed at improving the quality of life of the local communities it supports.

PART II - Non-compliance with the Code

Principle 7: Evaluation of the Board's Performance

Even though the Board undertook a self-evaluation of its own performance, it did not appoint an ad hoc committee to carry out such evaluation. The Board believes that the outcome of such self-assessment exercise currently provides the deliverables needed.

Principle 8: Committees

The Momorandum and Articles of Association of the Company regulates the appointment of Directors.

The Board believes that the setting up of a Normination Committee and a Remuneration Committee is currently not suited to the Company as envisaged by the spirit of the Code.

This statement of compliance with the principles of good corporate governance has been approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

Jose! Dimech Director

29 April 2021

Stephen Muscat Director



DSW Malta

Mdina Road Zebbug ZBG 9015 Malta

T+356 2278 7000 F+356 2149 3318

www.rsm.com.int

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholders of JD Capital PLC

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of JD Capital PLC ("the Company") and the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, "the Group"), set out on pages 18 - 46, which comprise the statements of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union ("EU"), and have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act (Cap. 386).

Our report is consistent with the additional report to the audit committee in accordance with the provision of Article 11 of the EU Regulations No. 537/2014 on specific requirements on statutory audits of public-interest entities.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements of both the international Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) ("IESBA Code") and the Accountancy Profession (Code of Ethics for Warrant Holders) Directive issued in terms of the Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281) in Malta that are relevant to our audits of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code and the Code of Ethics for Warrant Holders in Malta. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD AUDIT TAX CONSULTING



Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements - continued

Sasis for Opinion - continued

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services that we have provided to the Group are in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations in Malta and that we have not provided any non-audit services that are prohibited under Article 18A of the Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281).

The non-audit services that we have provided to the Group during the year are disclosed in Note 7 in the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is determined through the estimation of the stage of completion and the expected outcome of the project. Given this estimation process, it is possible that changes in future conditions could require a change in the recognised amount of revenue.

Our audit procedures included an analysis of contracts, bills of quantities prepared by third parties and/or project supervisors, project costs and budgets and/or any other relevant assessments as provided by management.

Valuation of investment property

The Group's investment property pertaining to a land in Birkirkara is carried at fair value of €4,522,184. Valuation of this property is inherently subjected to, among other factors, the individual nature of the property, its location, and the expected future revenues to be derived from the property.

The existence of significant estimates used to arrive at the fair value of the property, could result in a potential material misstatement by virtue of the inherent uncertainties underlying the estimations. Consequently, specific audit focus and attention was given to this area. The valuation of the property was performed by management on the basis of valuation reports prepared by an independent qualified architect.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, the following:

- Considering the objectivity, independence, competence and capabilities of the external valuer.
- Reviewing the methodology used by external valuer and by management to estimate the value of the investment property.
- Assessing the valuation inputs and assumptions used on which the forecasts were made.
- Assessing the reasonableness of the valuation by reference to market evidence of transactions for similar properties.



Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements - continued

Key Audit Matters - continued

impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

The Group's industrial buildings relate to the emphyteusis on the factory in Hall Far. This had a carrying amount of €10,604,873 as at year-end. The directors are required to assess whether the assets are potentially impaired. In light of the significant directors' judgement we consider this to be a key audit matter for our audit.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, the following:

- Obtaining a valuation of the industrial building from independent external valuer.
- Reviewing the methodology used by the external valuer and by management to estimate the fair value of the industrial buildings.
- Testing the mathematical accuracy of the calculations derived from the forecast model.
- Assessing the key valuation inputs and assumptions used on which the forecasts were made.

Going concern assumption

At year-end, the Group's current flabilities exceeded its current assets by €619,386. The directors are actively working on obtaining long-term financing to improve the liquidity of the Group. Negotiations for refinancing of the current liabilities are also being made since the end of the financial year, including with the privileged payables. The directors are confident that the positive results being constantly obtained, together with the business strategy that is being implemented, will improve the liquidity of the Group. This will ensure that the Group will be able to fund its commitments as and when the need arises to enable the Group to realise its assets and discharge its flabilities in the normal course of business.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, the following:

- Discussing with management their strategy to improve the liquidity of the Group.
- Reviewing the arrangements being made by the Group subsequent to year-end to refinance their current liabilities including with the privileged payables.
- Checking the performance of the Group with the projections prepared by management.

Assessment of the recoverability of the receivables

We identified the recoverability of the accounts receivable as a key audit matter due to the significant degree of judgements made by management in assessing the impairment of the receivables and consequently, in determining the extent of allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL").

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a loan receivable and amounts due from the parent company totalling to €5,181,651, amounts due from a related company of €304,835, other receivables from third party amounting to €2,227,912 and trade receivables and contract assets totalling €3,262,538.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, the following:

- · Reviewing the terms surrounding the agreements.
- Assessing the financial soundness of the third party and the parent company taking into account their business plans and strategies.
- Understanding and evaluating the workings and assumptions underlying the assessments for the loss allowances under IFRS 9.
- Based on evidence and explanations obtained, we concur with management's view with respect to the recoverability of the balances.



Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements - continued

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the general information, and the directors' report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information, including the directors' report.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we have obtained prior to the date of this auditors' report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Under Article 179(3) of the Companies Act (Cap. 386), we are required to consider whether the information given in the directors' report is compliant with the disclosure requirements of Article 177 of the same Act.

Based on the work we have performed, in our opinion:

- the directors' report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act (Cap. 386);
- the information given in the directors' report for the financial period for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
- in light of our knowledge and understanding of the Company and the Group, and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors' report.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and the requirements of the Companies Act (Cap. 386), and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company and the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company and/or the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors have delegated the responsibility for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and the Company to the Audit Committee.



Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements - continued

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
 fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
 evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
 a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
 involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
 control.
- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
 that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
 effectiveness of the Company and the Group's internal control.
- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
- conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting end, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company and the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company and/or the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
 disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
 a manner that achieves fair presentation.
- obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entitles or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
 We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.



Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements - continued

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements - continued

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Report on the Statement of Compliance with the Principles of Good Corporate Governance

The Prospects MTF Rules issued by the Malta Stock Exchange requires the directors to prepare and include in their Annual Report a Statement of Comptiance providing explanation of the extent to which they have adopted the Code of Principles of Good Governance and the effective measures that they have taken to ensure compliance throughout the year with those principles.

The Prospects MTF Rules also require the auditors to report on the Statement of Compliance prepared by the directors.

We read the Statement of Compliance and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements included in the Annual Report. Our responsibilities do not extend to considering whether this statement is consistent with any other information included in the Annual Report.

We are not required to, and we do not, consider whether the Board's statements on internal control included in the Statement of Compliance cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

In our opinion, the Statement of Compliance with the Principles of Good Corporate Governance has been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Prospects MTF Rules issued by the Malta Stock Exchange.



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements - continued

Other Matters on which we are Required to Report by Exception

Under Articles 179(10) and 179(11) of the Companies Act (Cap. 386), we are required to report to you if in our opinion:

- · proper accounting records have not been kept; or
- · returns have not been received from branches we have not visited; or
- · the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- we were unable to obtain all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, are necessary for the purposes of our audit.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Appointment

We were first appointed to act as statutory auditors of the Company by the shareholders of the Company on 18 June 2018 for the period ended 31 December 2018, and we were subsequently reappointed by the shareholders at the Company's general meeting for the financial years thereafter. The period of uninterrupted engagement as statutory auditor of the Company is three financial periods.

This copy of the audit report has been signed by:

Conrad Borg (Principal) for and on behalf of

RSM Malta
Certified Public Accountants

29 April 2021

JD CAPITAL PLC Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME					
		Group		Compar	
	Notes	2020 €	2019 €	2020 €	2019 €
Revenue	5	15,144,684	11,328,789	*	-
Cost of sales		(12,875,671)	(8,248,735)	•	-
Gross profit	,	2,269,013	3,080,054		-
Selling and distribution expenses		(111,213)	(156,095)	-	-
Administrative expenses		(768,014)	(1,608,745)	(59,511)	(40,453)
Other income	6	4,550	22,792	-	-
Operating profit/(loss)	7	1,394,336	1,338,006	(59,511)	(40,453)
Finance and dividend income	9	241,309	60,469	1,129,831	313,158
Finance costs	10	(524,874)	(475,798)	(250,000)	(250,000)
Other losses	11	(89,984)	-	-	•
Impairment on financial assets		(199,635)	(55,886)	4	(15,190)
Profit before tax		821,152	866,811	820,320	7,515
Tax	12	(411,635)	(392,056)	(284,395)	•
Profit for the year		409,517	474,755	535,925	7,515
Total comprehensive income for the year		409,517	474,755	535,925	7,515
Total comprehensive income attributable to:					
Owners of the Company					7.546
Profit for the year		409,517	474,755	535,925	7,515
Basic earnings per share	23	1.67	1.94	2.19	0.03

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

		Group		Compan	У
	-	2020	2019	2020	2019
	Blaten	€	€	€	€
	Notes	•			
ASSETS					
Non-current assets			15,413,161		-
Property, plant and equipment	13	15,039,420	4,518,290	=	-
Investment property	14	4,522,184	224,497		40
Intermible assets	15	224,497	224,401	7,502,400	7,502,400
Investment in subsidiaries	16		6,987,711	4,884,810	4.884,810
Financial assets at amortised cost	17	5,924,940	0,901,111	*********	*_
Deferred tax asset	12	4,973	27,143,659	12,387,210	12,387,210
		25.716.014	\$1,149,000	12,001	
Current essets		4 500 450	810,564	53,054	45,400
Financial assets at amortised cost	17	1,789,458	2,101,973		
Inventories	18	1,374,962	2, (01,010		
Contract assets	20	1,984,147	838,370	200,817	201,367
Trade and other receivables	19	2,384,712	15,082	212	58
Cash and cash equivalents	28	10,503	3,765,989	254,083	246,825
		7,543,782	30,909,648	12,641,293	12,634,035
TOTAL ASSETS		33,259,796	20,000,0-10		
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES					
Capital and reserves				046 406	245,100
Share capital	21	245,100	245,100	245,100	7,301,600
Other equity	22	7,301,600	7,301,600	7,301,600	10,450
Retained earnings		1,023,897	1,141,745	19,010 7,585,710	7,557,150
TOTAL EQUITY		8,570,597	8,688,445	7,503,119	1,337,100
I O I AL Edoit !					
Non-current liabilities			A 400 040	4,905,970	4,895,839
Barrowings	24	8,166,954	6,469,810	4,590,010	*
Lease flabilities	25	3,528,128	3,562,377	-	
Trade and other payables	27	3,810,218	787,592	-	-
Deferred tax Rabilities	12	360,600	360,000		_
Non-current tax flabilities		660,731	44 470 770	4,905,970	4,895,839
14644 agent and a second a second and a second a second and a second a second and a		16,526,031	11,179,779	4,500,010	
Current Habilities			1,378,127	3,592	13,248
Borrowings	24	2,017,712	32,577	0,002	
Lopes Habilities	25	34,248		-	
Contract Kabilities	26	696,385		429	
Current tax liabilities		556,272			167,798
Trade and other payables	27		6,661,558 11,041,424	169,613	101000
		8,163,168			5,076,885
TOTAL LIABILITIES		24,689,199		2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		33,259,796	30,308,040	************	
				to the Or	and of Directors

The financial statements on pages 18 - 46 were approved and authorised for Issue by the Board of Directors on 29 April 2021 and tube signed on its behalf by:

Josef Dimech Director

Stephen Muscat

Director

JD CAPITAL PLC Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY				
		Gro	up	
	Share	Other	Retained	
	capital €	equity €	earnings €	Total €
Financial period ended 31 December 2019:				
Balance at 1 January 2019	245,100	7,301,800	666,990	8,213,690
Total comprehensive income for the year:			Ť	
Profit for the financial year	-	-	474,755	474,755
Balance at 31 December 2019	245,100	7,301,600	1,141,745	8,688,445
Financiał year ended 31 December 2020:				
Balance at 1 January 2020	245,100	7,301,600	1,141,745	8,688,445
Total comprehensive income for the year:		. , ,	7,7,7,7,7,7,	0.000, 1.10
Profit for the financial year	_		409,517	409,517
Dividends (Note 21)		-	(527,365)	(527,365)
Balance at 31 December 2020	245,100	7,301,600	1,023,897	8,570,597
		Comp	าลกษ	
	Share	Other	Retained	
	capital €	equity	earnings <i>E</i>	Total
Financial period ended 31 December 2019:	-		4	€
Balance at 1 January 2019	245,100	7,301,600	2,935	7,549,635
Total comprehensive income for the year:		,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	.,,,,,,	7 0 10 0 00
Profit for the financial year	_	-	7,515	7,515
Balance at 31 December 2019	245,100	7,301,600	10,450	7,557,150
Financial year ended 31 December 2020;				
Balance at 1 January 2020	245,100	7,301,600	10,450	7,557,150
Total comprehensive income for the year:			10,100	.,,,,
Profit for the financial year	•	₩	535,925	535,925
Dividends (Note 21)	to the	_	(527,365)	(527,365)
Balance at 31 December 2020	245,100	7,301,600	19,010	7,565,710

JD CAPITAL PLC
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS		0			
		Gro		Comp	
	Notes	2020	2019	2020	2019
Cash flows from operating activities	Notes	€	€	€	€
Profit before tax		024.452	960 944	000 000	7.545
Adjustments for:		821,152	866,811	820,320	7,515
Finance costs	10	524,874	475,798	250,000	250 000
Depreciation	13	788,213	692,789	250,000	250,000
Impairment on financial assets	10	199,635	55.866		15,190
Amortisation of bond issue costs		10,131	9,620	10,131	9,620
Loss on disposal of motor vehicles	11	89,984	0,020	10,101	3,020
Finance and dividend income	9	(241,309)	(60,469)	(318,500)	(313,158)
Cash from/(used in) operations before		(=+1 000)	(00,100)	(310,300)	(313,136)
working capital changes		2,192,680	2,040,415	761,951	(30,833)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories		727,011	(2,101,973)	1011001	(50,033)
Increase in trade and other receivables			(2, 101,010)	_	-
and contract assets		(3,609,490)	(908,879)		_
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other		(0,000,000)	(000,000)	_	
payables and contract liabilities		(251,806)	(202,771)	(2,206)	3,306
Cash (used in)/from operations	-	(941,605)	(1,173,208)	759,745	(27,527)
Interest paid		(65,312)	(77,988)	100)140	(120,12)
Interest received		19	(,000,	252,073	
Taxes paid		(957)	_	(283,966)	
Net cash flows (used in)/from operating	_				
activities	_	(1,007,855)	(1,251,193)	727,852	(27,527)
Cash flows from Investing activities					
Payments for additions of:					
Property, plant and equipment		(537,057)	(1,085,528)		
Investment property		(3,894)	(18,290)	•	
Receipt from disposal of motor vehicles		22,687	((0,120)	-	_
Receipts from loans		286,075	_		_
Interest received		241,290	_		_
Movement in amounts due from subsidiary				_	
and related company	•	(312,918)	40,423	59,323	144,690
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing	-				111,000
activities		(303,817)	(1,063,395)	59,323	144,690
Cash flows from financing activities	_			,	
Net proceeds from short-term borrowings		4 700 000	0.040.040		
Repayment of borrowings		4,782,595	2,348,612	•	-
Interest paid		(2,312,415) (284,181)	/250 000\ -	(250 000)	(050,000)
Dividends paid		(527,365)	(250,000)	(250,000)	(250,000)
Payments on finance leases		(211,140)	(143,639)	(527,365)	-
Movement in amounts due to subsidiary,		(271,140)	(140,008)	-	_
ultimate shareholder and related compan	v	308,833	43,004	(9,656)	12 240
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing	<i>-</i>	240,042	75,007	(8,030)	13,248
activities		1,756,327	1,997,977	(787,021)	(236,752)
Net cash movement during the year	_				
		444,655	(316,611)	154	(119,589)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year		(424 482)	(447 544)	50	440.047
	_	(434,152)	(117,541)	58	119,647
Cash and cash equivalents at	70	40	4404 4700		
end of year	28 _	10,503	(434,152)	212	58

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

JD Capital PLC ("the Company") is a public limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Malta. The Company's registered office is HHF 303 Industrial Estate, Hai Far, Birzebbugia BBG 3000, Malta.

The principal activity of the Company is to act as a holding company and to provide financing to its subsidiaries. The Company together with its subsidiaries ("the Group") is engaged in the business of providing aluminium, steel, wrought iron, large scale glass formats, and stainless-steel works, as well as the construction of steel structures. The Group also holds an investment property.

JD Holdings Limited, a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Malta, is the ultimate parent of the Group and of the Company. Josef Dimech, a resident in Malta, is the ultimate beneficial owner of the Group and of the Company.

2. GOING CONCERN

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by €619,386. This reflects the active efforts undertaken by the directors to improve the liquidity of the Group. The directors are actively working on negotiating long term financing with privileged creditors to improve the liquidity of the Group. The directors are confident that the positive results being constantly obtained, together with the business strategy that is being implemented, will improve the liquidity of the Group. This will ensure that the Group will be able to fund its commitments as and when the need arises to enable the Group to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. On the above basis, the directors considered it appropriate to prepare the financial statements of the Company and the Group on a going concern basis.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance and basis of measurement

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union ("EU") and compty with the requirements of the Companies Act (Cap. 386) enacted in Malta. These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the investment property which is carried at fair value.

Presentation and functional currencies

These financial statements are presented in Euro (€) which is also the Company's functional currency.

New or revised standards, Interpretations, or amendments adopted

The Group has adopted several new or revised standards, interpretations and amendments issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and the IFRS interpretations Committee and endorsed by the EU. The adoption of these new or revised standards, interpretations and amendments did not have a material impact on these financial statements.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

New or revised standards, interpretations, or amendments not yet effective

Several other new and revised Standards, Interpretations, or Amendments, not early adopted by the Group, were in issue and endorsed by the EU, but not yet effective for the current financial period. The Directors are of the opinion that the adoption of these Standards, Interpretations or Amendments will not have a material impact on these financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the revenues and expenses, cash flows, assets and liabilities of the Company and of its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are companies over which the Group has control, directly or indirectly. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.

These consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries that were consolidated are listed in Note 16 to these financial statements.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between companies within the Group are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. A change in ownership interest, without the loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction, where the difference between the consideration transferred and the book value of the share of the non-controlling interest acquired is recognised directly in equity attributable to the parent.

Non-controlling interest in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group.

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets including goodwill, liabilities and non-controlling interest in the subsidiary and other related component of equity. The Group recognises the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any investment retained together with any gain or loss in profit or loss. Any interest retained is measured at fair value when control is lost.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are transleted to the respective functional currencies of Group companies at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies have been translated into Euro (€) at the rates of exchange ruling at the end of reporting period. All resulting differences are taken to profit or loss.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled when or as each performance obligation is satisfied in a manner that depicts the transfer to the customer of the goods or services promised. Specifically, revenue from contracts to provide services is recognised over time as the services are rendered based on an amount that depicts the progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

The consideration relates to the transaction price or a portion of the transaction price allocated to each performance obligation as defined in the contract with the customer.

The transaction price may include variable consideration and the time value of money. Variable consideration within the transaction price, if any, reflects concessions provided to the customer such as discounts, rebates and refunds, any potential bonuses receivable from the customer and any other contingent events.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as Interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the nat carrying amount of the financial asset.

Other income

Other income is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established.

Finance costs

Finance costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of that asset. All other finance costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Tax

The tax charge/(credit) in the profit or loss normally comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method, for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Tax - continued

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future texable profits will be available against which the assets can be utilised and/or sufficient taxable temporary differences are available. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Intangible asset

An intengible asset acquired as part of a business combination, other than goodwill, is initially measured at fair value at the date of the acquisition. An intengible asset acquired separately is initially recognised at cost. An indefinite life intengible asset is not amortised and is subsequently measured at cost less any impairment. A finite life intengible asset is subsequently measured at cost less amortisation and any impairment. On derecognition, gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intengible asset. The method and useful lives of finite life intengible assets are reviewed annually. Changes in the expected pattern of consumption or useful life are accounted for prospectively by changing the amortisation method or period.

Intellectual property

Intellectual property has an indefinite useful life.

Investment property

investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, including property under construction for such purposes, is measured initially at its cost, including transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, an investment property is carried at fair value, and unlike operational properties, it is not depreciated. A change in the fair value of an investment property is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Transfers to and from investment properties to property, plant and equipment are determined by a change in use of owner-occupation. The fair value on the date of change of use from investment properties to property, plant and equipment are used as deemed cost for the subsequent accounting. The existing carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is used for the subsequent accounting cost of investment properties on the date of change of use.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Property, plant and equipment - continued

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the net cost of each item of property, plant and equipment over their expected useful lives as follows:

	%
Industrial building	1.5
Machinery	20
Office fumiture	10
Motor vehicles	20
Electronic equipment	25
Electric hand tools	20

The estimated useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when there is no future economic benefit to the Group. Gains and losses between the carrying amount and the disposal proceeds are taken to profit or loss. Any revaluation surplus reserve relating to the item disposed of is transferred directly to retained profits.

Right-of-use asset

A right-of-use asset is recognised at the commencement date of a lease. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for, as applicable, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date net of any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred, and, except where included in the cost of inventories, an estimate of costs expected to be incurred for dismantling and removing the underlying asset, and restoring the site or asset.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful life of the asset, whichever is the shorter. Where the Group expects to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the depreciation is over its estimated useful life. Right-of use assets are subject to impairment or adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The Group has elected not to recognise a right-of-use asset and corresponding losso liability for short-term leases with terms of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. Lease payments on these assets are expensed to profit or loss as incurred.

Investment in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are companies over which the Company has control, directly or indirectly. The Company controls an entity when the Company is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the

Investment in subsidiaries in the statement of financial position of the Company are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at the end of reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount is calculated as the present value of the expected future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate inherent in the assets. The recoverable amount of the assets is the greater of their net selling price and value in use.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

In respect of the Group's assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost (other than trade receivables) are Initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. These financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for expected credit losses.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. When there is no reasonable expectation of recovering part or all of a financial asset, it's carrying value is written off.

Contract assets

Contract assets are recognised when the Group has transferred goods or services to the customer but where the Group is yet to establish an unconditional right to consideration. Contract assets are treated as financial assets for impairment purposes.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value, which in case for trade receivables which do not have significant financing components, as a practical expedient, is the transaction price. Subsequently, these are measured at transaction price, as a practical expedient, or at amortised cost using the effective interest method when effect of discounting is material, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cash at banks and short-term investments in a financial institution.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss and trade receivables. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original affective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs as a practical expedient. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of tax effects.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Lease liabilities

A lease liability is recognised at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the consolidated entity's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments comprise of fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option when the exercise of the option is reasonably certain to occur, and any anticipated termination penalties. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amounts are remeasured if there is a change in the following: future lease payments arising from a change in an index or a rate used; residual guarantee; lease term; certainty of a purchase option and termination penalties. When a lease liability is remeasured, an adjustment is made to the corresponding right-of use asset, or to profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is fully written down.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Trade payables

Trade payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year and which are unpaid. These are initially recognised at fair value. Due to their short-term nature, they are measured at amortised cost and are not discounted. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 90 days of recognition.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities represent the Group's obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer and are recognised when a customer pays consideration, or when the Group recognises a receivable to reflect its unconditional right to consideration (whichever is earlier) before the Group has satisfied its performance obligation in a contract with customer.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.

Fair value measurement

When an asset or liability, financial or non-financial, is measured at fair value for recognition or disclosure purposes, the fair value is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date; and assumes that the transaction will take place either: in the principal market; or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market.

Fair value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming they act in their economic best interests. For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement is based on its highest and best use. Valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, are used, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are classified into three levels, using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. Classifications are reviewed at each reporting date and transfers between levels are determined based on a reassessment of the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

For recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements, external valuers may be used when internal expertise is either not available or when the valuation is deemed to be significant. External valuers are selected based on market knowledge and reputation. Where there is a significant change in fair value of an asset or liability from one period to another, an analysis is undertaken, which includes a verification of the major inputs applied in the latest valuation and a comparison, where applicable, with external sources of data.

Eemings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND CRITICAL ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

The preparation of these financial statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU requires the Directors to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses in the financial statements. These judgements, estimates and assumptions, which are continually evaluated, are based on historical experience and on other various factors, including expectations of future events, that the Directors believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting judgements and estimates will seldom equal the related actual results. The judgements and estimates that are significant to these financial statements are discussed

Revenue from contracts with customers

Management determines revenue through the estimation of the stage of completion and expected outcome of the project. Given this estimation process, it is possible that changes in the future conditions could require a change in the recognised amount of revenue.

Expected credit losses

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past due for various customer segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed default rates. The Group calibrates the matrix to adjust the historical credit losses experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year, leading to a potential increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

Fair value of investment property

Investment property is revalued annually to fair value by using either internal valuations or valuations prepared by external independent valuers. These valuations are based upon assumptions including future rental value, anticipated property costs, future development costs and the appropriate discount rate. Reference is also made to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties, such as the issue of the required permits and matters of significant judgements and, therefore, cannot be determined with precision.

incremental borrowing rate

Where the interest rate implicit in a lease cannot be readily determined, an incremental borrowing rate is estimated to discount future lease payments to measure the present value of the lease liability at the lease commencement date. Such a rate is based on what the Group estimates it would have to pay a third party to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset, with similar terms, security and economic environment.

4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND CRITICAL ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES - continued

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses impairment of non-financial assets at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Group and to the particular asset that may lead to impairment. If an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. This involves fair value less costs of disposal or value-in-use calculations, which incorporate a number of key estimates and assumptions. The directors' assessed that the property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and inventories of the Group are not impaired as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic

Judgement has been exercised in considering the impacts that the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has had, or may have, on the Group based on known information. This consideration extends to the nature of the products and services offered, customers, supply chain and staffing. The directors have assessed that there is neither any significant impact upon the financial statements nor any significant uncertainties with respect to events or conditions which may impact the Company unfavourably as at the reporting date or subsequently as a result of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.

5. REVENUE

	Gro	up
	2020	2019
	€	€
Revenue from contracts with customers	15,144,684	11,328,789

6. OTHER INCOME

The Group's other income in 2020 pertains to wage supplements received. Other income in 2019 pertains to sales of scrap materials.

7. OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)

Operating profit/(loss) is stated after charging:

	Group		Company	
	2020	2019	2020	2019
	€	€	€	€
Staff costs (see Note 8)	3,414,983	3,970,719		_
Directors' remuneration (see Note 8)	265,273	259,031	•	_
Directors' fees	17,600	26,065	10,000	10,000
Auditors' remuneration:				•
- Statutory audit	21,005	21,480	9,912	9,440
- Review services (interim reports)	2,360	3,200	2,360	2,600
 Tax compliance services 	1,226	1,226	472	472
- Other assurance services	8,850	600	8,850	600
- Other non-assurance services	900			-
Depreciation (see Note 13)	788,213	692,789		_

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

8. STAFF COSTS

_	Group		Company	iny	
	2020	2019	2020	2019	
	€	€	€	€	
Directors' remuneration	262,774	256,511	•	-	
Social security costs and maternity fund	2,499	2,520	-	_	
	265,273	259,031	-	-	
Salaries and wages	3,220,919	3,784,253	•		
Social security costs and maternity fund	194,064	188,466		-	
	3,414,983	3,970,719	-	-	

The average number of persons employed by the Group during the year were 115 production personnel and 11 administrative personnel (2019: 105 and 27, respectively). The Company has no employees of its own.

9. FINANCE AND DIVIDEND INCOME

	Group		Group Comps		ny
	2020	2019	2020	2019	
	€	€	€	€	
Interest on loans receivable Bank interest Dividend income	241,290	60,469	318,500	313,158	
	19	_	-	-	
			811,331		
	241,309	60,469	1,129,831	313,158	

10. FINANCE COSTS

	Group		Compai	ny
	2020 2019		2020	2019
	€	€	€	€
Interest on bonds payable	250,000	250,000	250,000	250,000
Interest on bank borrowings	86,279	71,586	-	_
Interest on lease liabilities	178,562	147,813	-	-
Interest on late payments	10,033	6,399		_
	524,874	475,798	250,000	250,000

11. OTHER LOSSES

During the year-ended 31 December 2020, the Group disposed some vehicles resulting in a loss on disposal amounting to €69,984.

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

12. TAX

Tax expense for the period is comprised of the following:

- Fair value of investment property

	_	-		_
Current tax	411,520	392,056	284,395	
Adjustment of prior period current tax	5,088	**		-
Deferred tax credit	(4,973)	-	46	
	411,635	392,056	284,395	-
The tax on the profits at statutory rate of 35	% reconciles to the	ne tax expense fi	or the period as	follows:
,	Group	·	Compa	
	2020	2019	2020	2019
	€	€	€	€
Profit before tax	821,152	866,811	820,320	7,515
Tax at statutory rate of 35% Adjustments for:	287,403	303,384	287,112	2,630
- non-taxable income	(532)	1,018	-	(109,605)
- non-deductible expenses	166,592	87,654	24,646	106,975
- unutilised tax losses	(27,363)	-	(27,363)	
- deferred tax unrecognised in previous				
year	(19,553)	-	-	**
- adjustment of prior period current tax	5,088	-		-
_	411,635	392,056	284,395	
Deferred Tax Asset				
	Group	ı	Compa	nv
_	2020	2019	2020	2019
-	€	€	€	€
Tax effect of temporary differences arising from:				
- Expected credit losses	89,425	-		heji
- Accrued interest receivable	(84,452)		an-	-
	4,973	-	-	-
Deferred Tax Liability				
_	Group		Compa	пу
-	2020	2019	2020	2019
	€	€	€	€
Tax effect of temporary differences arising from:				

Group

2019

€

2020

€

Company

2020

€

2019

€

360,000

360,000

JD CAPITAL PLC
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

				Group	0			
\$	findustrial buildings	Righ-of-use asset	Machinery	Office	Motor	Electronic equipment	Electric hand tools	Totai
	•	(b)	₩	Ф	ťΩÌ	Ψ.	₩	ø
Year ended 31 December 2019:								
Cost								
Operaing balance	10,057,770	1	731,579	65,214	626,018	60,717	182,468	11,923,766
Adoption of IFRS 16	-	2,770,862			1	•	1	2,770,862
•	10,057,770	2,770,862	731,579	65,214	626,018	60,717	182,468	14,694,628
Additions	898,209	850,203	101,467	26,022	41,855	3,937	14,038	1,935,731
Closing balance	10,955,979	3,621,065	833,046	91,236	867,873	64,654	196,506	16,630,359
Accumulated depreciation								
Opening balance	154,710	1	146,316	6,521	165,189	15,179	36,494	524,409
Depreciation	231,493	56,523	166,609	9,124	173,575	16,164	39,301	692,789
Closing balance	386,203	56,523	312,925	15,645	338,764	31,343	75,795	1,217,198
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019	10,569,776	3,564,542	520,121	75,591	529,109	33,311	120,711	15,413,161
Year ended 31 December 2020:								
Cost								
Opening balance	10,955,979	3,621,065	833,046	91,236	867,873	64,654	196,506	16,630,359
Additions	290,078	ı	171,389	14,035	29,000	4,944	27,611	537,057
Disposals	1	1	6	1	(190,356)	•	•	(190,356)
Closing balance	11,246,057	3,621,065	1,004,435	105,271	706,517	69,598	224,117	16,977,060
Accumulated depreciation		1	6		400	070	101 401	4 247 400
Opening balance	386,203	56,523	312,825	13,643	330,704	545,15	00,00	1,417,130
Depreciation	254,981	118,293	200,887	10,527	141,303	17,399	44,823	786,213
Disposal	1	t	1	3	(67,771)		•	(67,771)
Closing balance	641,184	174,816	513,812	26,172	412,296	48,742	120,618	1,937,640
Carrying amount at 31 December ::020	10,604,873	3,446,249	490,623	79,099	194,221	20,856	103,499	15,039,420

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

	Group		
	2020	2019	
	€	€	
Fair value	4,522,184	4,518,290	
Movements in investment property during the period were as follows:			
	2019	2018	
	€	€	
Opening balance	4,518,290	4,500,000	
Additions from subsequent expenditures	3,894	18,290	
Ending balance	4,522,184	4,518,290	

The Group's investment property consists of land in Birkirkara, Malta. The fair value of the investment property as at 31 December 2020 amounts to €4,522,184 (2019: €4,518,290). The carrying amount of the investment property which would have been included in the financial statements had it been carried at cost is €4,022,184 (2019: €4,018,290)

The Group's investment property is used as a security by means of a hypothec for a banking facility of a related company.

Refer to Note 32 to these financial statements for the fair value measurement.

15. INTANGIBLE ASSET

The Group's intengible asset pertains to the intellectual property right to use the business brand, logo, and tradename 'USDimech'.

16. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following are the subsidiaries of the Group with the corresponding shareholding percentage of the Group and the amount of the investment carried in the Company's statement of financial position:

		_	Company	
		Ownership -	2020	2019
Subsidiary	Country	%	€	€
JD Birkirkara Limited	Maita	100	4,001,200	4,001,200
JD Operations Limited	Malta	100 _	3,501,200	3,501,200
			7,502,400	7,502,400

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

16. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES - continued

The following table summarizes the financial information of the Company's subsidiaries as at and for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Subsidiary	Net assets €	Profit/(Loss) €
JD Operations Limited JD Birkirkara Limited	4,360,145 4,131,952	403,987 (3,030)

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

	Group		Company	
	2020	2019	2020	2019
	€	€	€	€
Non-current				
Loan to a subsidiary (I)		-	4,884,810	4,884,810
Loan to ultimate parent (ii)	5,133,431	5,418,619	-	-
Other receivables (iii)	791,509	1,569,092	-	
	5,924,940	6,987,711	4,884,810	4,884,810
Current				
Amounts owed by subsidiaries (iv)	-	40	7,654	-
Amounts owed by ultimate parent (iv)	48,220	40,137	45,400	45,400
Amounts owed by a related company (iv)	304,835	-	-	-
Other receivables (iii)	1,436,403	770,427	-	-
	1,789,458	810,564	53,054	45,400
•				

- The loan to a subsidiary is unsecured, earns interest at 6.5% per annum, and is repayable by not later than 30 September 2027, interest income for the period from this loan amounted to €318,500 (2019: €313,158). The amount is net of €15,190 expected credit losses (2019: €15,190).
- ii. The loan to ultimate parent is unsecured, bears interest at 4.5% per annum is repayable by 1 October 2026. The amount is stated not of expected credit loss of €15,963 (2019; €16,850).
- iii. The other receivables are stated net of expected credit losses of €6,898 (2019: €7,275). These are unsecured, bear interest at 4.75% per annum and are repayable in principal repayments of €60,000 per month, excluding interest. The amounts receivable within one year are classified as current.
- iv. The amounts owed by subsidieries, ultimate parent and related company are unsecured, interest-free, and repayable on demand. The amounts owed by a related company is stated net of €948 expected credit losses (2019: nil).

18. INVENTORIES

	Group		
	2020	2019	
	€	€	
Raw materials	1,056,521	944,811	
Work-in-process	318,441	1,157,162	
	1,374,962	2,101,973	

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

	Group		Company	
	2020 €	2019 €	2020 €	2019 €
Trade receivables (i.) Prepayments	1,278,391 1,106,321	286,327 552,043		-
Accrued Interest income (ii)	•		200,817	201,367
The state of the s	2,384,712	838,370	200,817	201,367

Trade receivables are stated net of allowance for expected credit losses amounting to €162,302 (2019: €31,741). Expected credit losses recognised for the year amounted to €130,561 (2019: €31,741).

20. CONTRACT ASSETS

	Group	
	2020	2019
	€	€
At 1 January		4,236,104
Additions	2,053,537	~
Transfer to trade receivables	-	(4,236,104)
Provision for expected credit losses	(69,390)	
At 31 December	1,984,147	-

Contract assets are stated net of expected credit losses of €69,390 (2019: nil).

21. SHARE CAPITAL

	Group and Co	mpany
	2020	2019
	€	E
Authorised share capital		0.45.000
245,000 Ordinary shares of €1 each	245,000	245,000
100 Ordinary A shares of €1 each	100	100
100 Ordinary resource of the control	245,100	245,100
issued share capital		
245,000 Ordinary shares of €1 each	245,0 00	245,000
100 Ordinary A shares of €1 each	100	100
Administration of a continuous and act (ASSA).	245,100	245,100

The holders of "Ordinary" shares have all the rights in the Company.

The holders of "Ordinary A" shares shall not be entitled to any rights in the Company, and shall therefore not be entitled to vote at any general meeting of the Company. However, they have the right to return of capital on their shares upon liquidation of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company pald dividends amounting to €527,365 or €2.15 per Ordinary share.

22. OTHER EQUITY

This represents the amounts owed to the parent company which are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable at the absolute discretion of the Company.

ii. Accrued interest income relates to the interest on the loan to a subsidiary.

23. EARNINGS PER SHARE

	Group		Company	
	2020	2019	2020	2019
Profit for the period attributable to owners of the Company Weighted average number of	€409,517	€474,755	€535,925	€7,515
ordinary shares	245,000	245,000	245,000	245,000
Basic earnings per share	€1,67	€1.94	€2.19	€0.03

The Group or the Company has no potential ordinary shares that would cause the dilution of basic earnings per share.

24. BORROWINGS

	Group_		Company	
	2020	2019	2020	2019
	€	€	€	€
Non-current				
€5,000,000 bonds, 5%, unsecured (i)	4,905,970	4,895,839	4,905,970	4,895,839
Bank loan I (ii)	591,000	-	br	-
Bank loan II (iii)	1,422,583		-	
Revolving facility (iv)	793,971	1,573,971	•	-
Amounts due to the ultimate				
shareholder (vi)	453,430	*	-	-
	8,166,954	6,469,810	4,905,970	4,895,839
Current			-	
Bank loan I (ii)	25,000			-
Bank loan II (iii)	558,718	-	-	-
Revolving facility II (iv)	1,424,339	774,641	-	-
Temporary banking facility (v)		449,234		-
Amounts due to the ultimate				
shareholder (vi)		151,292	•	-
Amounts due to related company (vii)	9,655	2,960	3,592	2,960
Amounts due to a subsidiary (vii)				10,288
	2,017,712	1,378,127	3,592	13,248

- i. The bonds will mature on 21 May 2028 with annual interest payments every 21st of May until maturity. The amount presented is net of unamortised bond issue costs of €94,030 (2019: €104,161), Interest expense on the bonds for the year are as disclosed in Note 10. The fair value of the bonds for every €100 bond as at 31 December 2020 was €99 (2019: €101).
- ii. Bank loan I pertains to a loan with a local bank under the Malta Development Bank's COVID-19 Assist Program. As at year-end, the loan has unutilised an amount of €84,000. The loan shall bear interest at a fixed rate of 2.5% per annum for the first two years from the take up of the loan and thereafter at the rate of the aggregate of the margin of 2.75% per annum and the three-month EURIBOR. The loan is repayable over a period of six years inclusive of a 12-month moratorium on the principal and sixmonths on interest. Following the moratorium period, the loan shall be repayable in 60 monthly instalments of €12,500. The loan is secured by a first general hypothec over the Company's assets and guarantee by the ultimate shareholder.
- iii. Bank loan II is a loan with another local bank taken as well under the Malta Development Bank's COVID-19 Assist Program and is fully utilised as at year-end. The loan shall bear interest at the rate of the aggregate of the margin of 3.15% per annum and the three-month EURIBOR. The loan is repayable in montly instalments of €50,917 beginning December 2020 until May 2024. The loan is secured by Malta Development Bank Guarantee for €1,800,000 and a special hypothec for €200,000 over property owned by a related party.

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

24. BORROWINGS - continued

- iv. The revolving facility bears interest at the rate of 5% per annum plus the 12-month EURIBOR and is repayable in accordance with the term sheet as agreed with the bank for each drawdown. The revolving facility is of €4,000,000.
- v. The Company was granted a temporary banking facility which was repayable on demand.
- vi. The amounts due to the ultimate shareholder are unsecured and interest-free. The ultimate shareholder has committed in writing that he will not call the said amounts for repayment within the twelve months following the date of the statement of financial position.
- vii. The amounts due to related company and the amounts due to a subsidiary were unsecured, interestfree, and repayable on demand.

25. LEASE LIABILITIES

	Group		
	2020		
	€	€	
Due after more than five years	10,303,782	10,525,478	
Oue after one year but within five years	872,855	862,298	
Due within one year	211,140	211,140	
Total gross lease liabilities	11,387,777	11,598,916	
Discounting	(7,825,401)	(8,003,962)	
Present value of lease liabilities	3,562,376	3,594,954	
Non-current	3,528,128	3,562,377	
Current	34,248	32,577	
	3,562,376	3,594,954	

The Group's lease liabilities pertain to the lease of industrial property under a temporary emphytheusis for a period of 65 years from 8 March 2018 and the lease of a commercial property (including garage) for a period of 12 years from 1 October 2019. The Group's obligations under these leases are secured by the lessor's title over the property. Generally, the Group is restricted from sub-leasing the property.

Movements in lease liabilities during the year were as follows:

Group	
2020	2019
€	€
3,594,954	2,740,577
	850,203
178,562	147,813
(211,140)	(143,639)
3,562,376	3,594,954
	2020 € 3,594,954 178,562

25. LEASE LIABILITIES - continued

The following were the amounts recognised in profit or loss relating to leases:

	Grou	Group		
	2020	2019		
	€	€		
Depreciation charge	118,293	56,523		
Interest expense	178,562	147,813		
	296,855	204,336		
26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
	Grou	o		
	2020	2019		
	€	€		
At 1 January	2,167,810	600,060		
Payments received in advance	696,385	1,987,810		
Transfers to revenue	(2,167,810)	(420,060)		
At 31 December	696,385	2,167,810		

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

	Grou	Group		Company	
	2020	2019	2020	2019	
	€	€	€	€	
Non-current					
Trade payables	714,546	•	•	-	
Indirect taxes and social					
security contribution	3,095,672	787,592			
	3,810,218	787,592	-	-	
Current					
Trade payables	2,985,883	3,208,607		4,248	
Accrued expenses	517,716	582,169	165,592	163,550	
Indirect taxes and social					
security contribution	1,354,952	2,870,782	=	-	
	4,858,551	6,661,558	165,592	167,798	

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of financial position is comprised of cash at banks. Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of financial position reconciles to the cash and cash equivalents with cash and cash equivalents in the statements of cash flows as follows:

	Grou	Group		r
	2020	2019	2020	2019
	€	€	€	€
Cash on hand	7,472	_	-	-
Cash at bank	3,031	15,082	212	58
Temporary banking facility	*	(449,234)	-	
	10,503	(434,152)	212	58

29. SIGNIFICANT NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Group

The Group has not engaged in any significant non-cash transactions during the year ended 31 December 2020. The following are the significant non-cash transactions that transpired during the year ended 31 December 2019:

- a) Trade receivable from a related company was assigned to a third party amounting to €2,293,971.
- b) Assignment of trade receivable from a related company to the ultimate parent company amounting to 65,375,000.
- c) Offsetting of amounts due to a related company against trade receivables from the same related company amounting to €4,550,000.

Сотралу

The Company has not engaged in any significant non-cash transactions during the year and in the previous year.

30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The Company carries out transactions with related parties on a regular basis and in the ordinary course of the business.

The following summarises the transactions with related parties that transpired during the period:

	Group		Company	
	2020	2019	2020	2019
	€	€	€	€
Related company				
Revenue from contracts	2,052,165	8,194,510	-	-
Purchases		(2,183,134)	-	_
Recharges	(43,378)	(144,744)	-	-
Net advances received/(paid)	(298,140)	35,060	632	33,040
Transfer of trade receivable		(7,668,971)	-	
Ultimate parent company Interest income Dividends paid Assignment of receivable	241,309 (527,365)	60,469 5,375,000		2
Ultimate shareholder Net advances (paid)/received	(151,292)	43,004		_
Subsidiaries Loan Interest income Dividends received - net Net advances (paid)/received	a a	-	318,500 527,36 5 (10,288)	(250,000) 313,158 - 59,400

The cutstanding amounts arising from transactions with related parties and the related terms and conditions are disclosed in Notes 17, 19, and 24 to these financial statements.

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

At year end, the Group's main financial assets on the statement of financial position is comprised of cash at banks, trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments and accrued income), and other financial assets at amortised cost. There were no off-balance sheat financial assets.

At year end, the Group's main financial liabilities on the statement of financial position is comprised of trade and other payables (excluding accruals), and borrowings. There were no off-balance sheet financial liabilities, except for lease commitments.

Exposure to credit, liquidity, and interest rate risks arise from the Group's activities.

Timing of cash flows

The presentation of the financial assets and liabilities listed above under the current and non-current headings within the statements of financial position is intended to indicate the timing in which cash flows will arise.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern and comply with the requirements of the prospectus issued in relation to the bonds while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to equity holders comprising issued share capital, reserves, and borrowings as disclosed in Notes 21, 22 and 24 to these financial statements and in the statements of changes in equity.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty in the financial assets will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group or the Company. The Group obtains guarantees where appropriate to mitigate credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the statement of financial position and notes to the financial statements. The Group does not hold any collateral.

The Group has adopted a lifetime expected loss allowance in estimating expected credit losses to trade receivables and contract assets through the use of a provisions matrix using fixed rates of credit loss provisioning. These provisions are considered representative across all customers of the Group based on recent sales experience, historical collection rates and forward-looking information that is available. Expected credit losses recognised on trade receivables and contract assets amounted to €231,692 (2019: €31,741)

Generally, trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators of this include the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan, no active enforcement activity and a failure to make contractual payments for a period greater than one year.

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Credit risk - continued

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has a credit risk concentration with the ultimate parent company and a third party which accounted for 58% and 25% (2019: 67% and 29%) of the Group's total financial assets, respectively. The Group recognised expected credit losses on these financial assets as at 31 December 2020 amounting to €15,963 and €6,898 (2019: €16,850 and €7,275), respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company has a credit risk concentration with a subsidiary which accounted for 99% (2019: 99%) of the Company's total financial assets. Expected credit losses recognised for this belance as at 31 December 2020 amounted to €15,190 (2019: €15,190).

The credit risk relating to cash at bank is considered to be low in view of management's policy of placing it with reputable financial institutions.

Credit risk related to trade receivables are as follows:

	Gross amount €	ECL €	earrying amount €
Current 30 to 89 days 90 to 179 days 180 to less than 1 year More than 1 year	1,114,728 181,253 18,063 99,789 26,860 1,440,693	(3,087) (31,781) (11,422) (89,152) (26,860) (162,302)	1,111,641 149,472 6,641 10,637

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in relation to meeting future obligations associated with its financial liabilities. Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient liquid assets and available borrowing facilities to be able to pay debts as and when they become due and payable.

The directors manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and available borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring actual and forecast cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following table details the undiscounted contractual cash flows arising from the Group's financial liabilities:

		Group	
	Within	Between	More than
	12 months	1-5 years	5 years
	€	€	€
31 December 2020			
Bonds payable (including interest)	250,000	1,000,000	5,750,000
Amounts due to a related company	9,655	-	-
Amounts due to the ultimate shareholder	-	453,430	•
Trade and other payables (excluding accrued interest)	4,704,441	3,810,218	-
Revolving facility	1,424,339	793,971	-
Bank Loans	583,718	2,013,583	-
Lease liabilities	211,140	872,855	10,303,782
F0000 H00mmos	7,183,293	8,944,057	16,053,782

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Liquidity risk - continued

	Group		
	Within	Between	More than
	12 months	1-5 years	5 years
	€	€	€
31 December 2019			
Bonds payable (including interest)	250,000	1,000,000	6,000,000
Amounts due to related parties	2,960	-	-
Amounts due to the ultimate shareholder	151,292		-
Trade and other payables (excluding accrued interest)	7,295,040	767,592	-
Revolving facility	774,641	1,573,971	-
Temporary banking facility	449,234	_	-
Lease liabilities	211,140	862,298	10,525,478
	9,134,307	4,223,861	16,525,478
		Company	

	Company		
	WithIn	Between	More than
	12 months	1-5 years	5 years
	€	€	€
31 December 2020			
Bonds payable (including interest)	250,000	1,000,000	5,750,000
Amounts due to related company and subsidiary	3,592	-	
Trade and other payables (excluding accrued interest)	11,482	-	
	265,074	1,000,000	5,750,000
31 December 2019			
Bonds payable (including interest)	250,000	1,000,000	6,000,000
Amounts due to related company and subsidiary	13,248	_	-
Trade and other payables (excluding accrued interest)	13,688	•	-
	276,936	1,000,000	6,000,000

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from the bank overdraft and revolving facility which are subject to varying interest rates according to revisions to the bank's base rate. Interest rate on the bonds payable is fixed while the other financial liabilities are interest-free, thus, interest rate risk does not apply to these

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

	Group			
	Loan from & amounts due to a related company	Amounts due to ultimate shareholder €	Bank loans and Revolving facility	Bonds €
31 December 2020:				
Beginning balance	2,960	151,292	2,348,612	4,895,839
Cash flows from financing activities	6,695	302,138	2,470,180	*
Net non-cash changes	•	_	(3,181)	10,131
Balance at 31 December 2020	9,655	453,430	4,815,611	4,905,970
31 December 2019:				
Beginning balance	4,550,940	108,288	-	4,886,219
Cash flows from financing activities	-	43,004	2,348,612	-
Net non-cash changes	(4,547,980)	_		9,620
Balance at 31 December 2019	2,980	151,292	2,348,612	4,895,839

32. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures fair values using the fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date:

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable input, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly observable from market date; and

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instruments valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted market prices for similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

Financial instruments

The carrying amounts of cash at banks, trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments), other financial assets at amortised costs, trade and other payables (excluding accruals), and other financial liabilities at amortised cost are carried at their present values using the effective interest method (where discounting is material) which is a reasonable approximation their fair values as at period.

32. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT - continued

Investment property

The fair value of the investment property, appraised by an independent valuer, was determined based on level 3 inputs. These level 3 inputs include future rental value, anticipated property costs, future developments and an appropriate discount rate. The valuation also assumes that the appeal made by third parties with regards to the approved changes to the building alignment will be refused.

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITY

On 11 September 2020, the Company received a correspondence from the Malta Financial Services Authority ("MFSA") imposing an administrative penalty of €5,000 upon the Company for a breach of Article 18(1)(c) of the Market Abuse Regulations. The Company has appealed with the Financial Services Tribunal requesting the revocation of the decision of the MFSA imposing the administrative penalty in its entirety.

34. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the shereholders resolved to increase the authorised share capital from €245,100 divided into two 245,000 Ordinary shares of €1.00 each and 100 Ordinary A shares of €1.00, to €7,546,700 divided into 7,543,621 Ordinary shares having a nominal value of €1.00 each and 3,079 Ordinary A shares of €1.00 each. The additional share capital is intended to be used to settle and capitalise the outstanding €7,301,800 subordinated loan of the Company through allotment of the additional authorised shares.

The impact of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic is ongoing and while it has not had a significant financial impact to the Group up to 31 December 2020, it is not practicable to identify and estimate the potential impact, positive or negative, after the reporting date. The Directors will continue to monitor and assess the situation on an on-going basis given that it is rapidly developing and is dependent on measures imposed by the Maltese Government and other countries, such as quarantine, travel restrictions and any economic stimulus that may be provided.

Supplementary Statements - 31 December 2020

CONTENTS	
Cost of sales	ı
Selling and distribution expenses	I
Administrative expenses	III

JD CAPITAL PLC Supplementary Statements - 31 December 2020

COST OF SALES

	Group		Company	
	2020	2019	2020	2019
	€	€	€	€
Opening balance of raw materials	944,811	-		
Purchases	5,963,206	6,300,181	-	-
Closing balance of raw materials	(1,056,521)	(944,811)		
Cost of raw materials put into process	5,851,496	5,355,370		
Manufacturing overhead and other direct costs:				
Consumables	11,204	42,661	-	-
Depreciation	770,814	676,625		~
Equipment hire	17,345	113,505	-	-
Rent	-	-	-	-
Repairs and maintenance	47,316	27,369	-	*
Subcontract costs	1,510,527	-	-	-
Water and electricity	40,874	25,745		-
Salaries and wages	3,412,508	3,164,622		-
Other direct cost	374,866		-	_
Total cost put into process	12,036,950	9,405,897	-	-
Opening balance of work-in-process	1,157,162	-	-	-
Closing balance of work-in-process	(318,441)	(1,157,162)	•	-
Cost of inventories manufactured and sold	12,875,671	8,248,735		-

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

	Group	Group		/
	2020 €	2019 €	2020 €	2019 €
Transport and vehicle expenses	97,913	148,514	-	_
Promotion and marketing	13,300	7,581	•	-
	111,213	156,095	•	

JD CAPITAL PLC Supplementary Statements - 31 December 2020

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

	Group		Compa	Company	
	2020	2019	2020	2019	
	€	€	€	€	
Salaries	248,845	806,097	•		
Directors' remuneration	18,903	259,031	-	-	
Directors' fees	17,600	26,065	10,000	10,000	
Auditors' remuneration	21,005	20,480	9,912	9,440	
Depreciation	17,399	16,164	-	-	
Professional fees	78,005	116,353	17,107	4,480	
Trading expense (MSE)	10,472	6,120	10,472	6,120	
Printing and stationary	12,382	14,209	-		
Bank charges	37,169	41,000	263	54	
Telecommunication	32,436	32,288	•	-	
Insurance	134,756	120,397	-	-	
Travel expenses		23,560	-	-	
General expenses	25,221	34,674	142	-	
Company registration fee	1,800	1,200	600	600	
Staff welfare	928	21,845	•	-	
Entertainment	3,785	33,823	-	-	
Uniforms	3,461	2,525	-	-	
Repairs and maintenance	3,470	18,316		-	
Amortisation of bond issue costs	10,131	9,620	10,131	9,620	
Penalties	90,246	4,978	884	139	
	768,014	1,608,745	59,511	40,453	